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HEVIEW D RECOMMEN DATTONS

I. TRILL DATLs The pecused were tried ot Dechau, Germeny, during the psriod

10 November - 12 Deocember 15/7, before a Genersl Mildtery Governrment Court,
Il. CHLHGE- LD PARTIOULLHS s
FIRST CHLRGEs TViclrtion of the lawe ond Usnges of Wor.

s
|
B
|

Portieulorsg: In thet Ewnld HEERDE, Otto RINK, Reinhold TEICHLNN ,
Ottokar TOMA, Georg GUITAHR, Heinrich SCHMITZ, Sepp SCHMATZ snd
Friefrich HECKER cctinm in pureusnce of n cormon deslem to eubjeet
the persons hereinafter deseribed to killings, beating, tortures,
stervotion, abusee tnd dnddgnities, did, ct or nesr the vicinity
of Flosegenburg Concentration Canp, necr Floassenburg, Germeny ond
ot or neer the vieinity of the Flopeenburg out-eamps, partienlerly
Herghruck, Wiolkenburg, Gonecker end leltmeritz, end with trans-
porte of prisoners evoeusting seid ecempe, 0ll in GCertmn or Gernon-
controlled terrditory ot werious ond sundry times, between the let
of Jonuory 1942 end the B%h of May 1945, willfully, deliberotely
end wrongfully encournge, oid, sbet and perticipate in the subjec-
tion of Poles, Frenchuen, Jugoelove, citizens of the Soviet Union,
Horweglons, Danes, Relglons, citizens of the Nethsrlends, cltizens
of the Grond Duchy of ILuxerbourg, British subjeots. stoteless
persone, Ozechs, citizens of the United Stetes of lmeriec ond other
non-Gerron netionoles who were then ond there in the custedy of the
then Gernon Redch, ond members of the rrmed forces of nationg then
ot wor with the then German Releh who were then end thers sur-
rendersed ond upermed prisoners of war in the custody of the then
German Releh to k1ldnga, bentings, toriires, sterestion, ohuses
ond indignitier, the exnet nomes ond numbers of sueh persons being
unknowm, dbut aggregeting meny thoustndas

F EVIDENCEs The ccoused, with the exeeption of asoused

| BCHITZ, wera membars of the 82 st Plosserburg Ocresntrcotion Corp and/fox
1%p pubcanps for considercble pericdm of time between the detes nlleged.
decuped SOHMITZ wee & elvilien doctor in the immete hospitel ot Floseen-
birg from 2 My 1944 un4dl 22 Mareh 1945. 411 wore chown to hove per-

tielpsted in the Flogsenbury Concentwstion Camp mose ntroeity. Prosseution's

Exhibit P-Ix 6 18 & certified copy of the cherge, perticulers, findings. snd
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sentences in the parent Flossenburpg Concentrstion Cemp case (United
Btrtes ve BECKER, et al., 000-50-46, DTAWC, May 1947, hereinafter re-
ferred %o as the "Parent Coee'; see Section V, post).
IV. EVIIENCE /2D RECOMVENDATIONS:

l. Eweld HEERDE

Naotionolitys German

Lgen 58

Civilinn Statues Toreman

Porty Statuss Nezi Party, since 1 September 1940
Mildtory Statues Waffen 58, Corporal

Fleas - NG

Findinger F

Senteneer 3 yeers, cormencing 5 May 1945

Iyidence for Prosecutions The acouged wae en 83 corporal or sergeant
end eerved 6s o guord, bleek lecder cnd member of hemdiquerters steff of
Tlomseriburg Coneentretdon Comp from 15 Desember 1941 until ebout 16 Lpril

1945 (R 222, 350, B17, 176: F-Ex 84 p« 3, B L57: P-Ex 174, R 459; B-Ex 18).
From Jenuery 1945 until April 1945, the sceused wes detnil leader of the
work deteil at Lltenhammer, e subsorp of Flossenburg Concsntretion Cerp

(R 250, 270, 309, 318, 383, 457; P-Ex 174, R L59; P-Ex 18, R 812).

4 former inmate by the nfme of Dick, testified thet he sew the
ceeused performing dutles os guerd nt the Jourhous ot Floseenburg Cone
centration Camp in 194l , checking the inmates who entered mnd left the
cemp (R 239)s 4 detedl of 25 to 30 sick inmates wep employed in eerrying
winter overcoats into the comps When one inmete, o Fole, eollopsed nnd
fell down, the sccused kicked him six or seven times. The Polish victim
remained lying on the ground ond hnd $o be earried to the dispensrry
(R 233 236)e Two doys loter, the witnees heerd that the vietim wop

deed (R 297).
| Witnese Goltz, rn inmate of Floseendurg Coneentration Cemp from
| Meveh 1943 untdil April 1945, testified thot one day in the eutumn of 1944

ebout D500 hours the necused shot cnd killed n young Ruseien inmete who
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hed broken into the sauverkraut werehouse. The witness steated thet the
seeusad surpriesd the vietim and, without warning, shot him from &
ddptance of three metera (B 4, LB-5¥1). After the vietim hed been re-
moved to the hospital, the mccused went %o the hospital %o meeertain
the cffect of hie shot mt the Ruseian.

Witnese Mille, an inmate at Flogecnburg from May 1938 until the
evacuation, testified that the ecoused shot & Russian or FPoliph inmate
whom he eceught stealing sauerkrsut from the storage room (R 222,
225-228), Witnesa Huefner tegtificd thet the acoused told him' that
he had ghot to desth & Rusesian inmete whom he had ceught steeling
entbage (R 269, 277, 278).

Witnsse Podenstein, & former immate of pubeamp Lltenhemmer, testified
thet the sccused wee in charge of the subcamp end conducted the roll eell
every day (R 311, 917-318). If en inmate feiled to work to his liking,
the ceecused would order e capo to glve him 25 blows. HAs punishment, he
would sometimes order en immete to work two conecoutive twelve hour
;hﬁta. puring the time the ccouped wae detail leeder, four or five
inmates Aied as & result of bectinge mdministered by the nceused end the

eopos (R 310, 311, 913, 314). He further testified thei he sew the blue and
ewollen corpeee of these vietime in the woshroom (R 313, 314); that in
one partienlar ineident which took plece in February 1945 the necused
found &n Italinn ipmate who wes not working; thet he beat this immote
with hiz hend end o rubber hose ond then ordered e espo to beet him,
efter whish the vietim woe uncble t welk; that hie hends, face and body
were swollen and blusj end thet the iomste died the next deye The witness
carried the corpse to & ecert (R 316-318). The witnsae further teetified
thet he wee henten on the fece several times end kieked by the cecused
EH 317 _’ﬂ-lﬂ. 319)*

Titness Kuefner testified thet between 1942 end 1945 he frequently
gaw the cocuped beat immptes at Flossenburg (R 270)s that in 2944, in
two perticuler instoness, he sow the cocused, on or transport from Hers-

brusk, beat an imnte with & pilees of wood ond kick him bseruse he wes

T



@ae they pessed through the mein gate; snd thet he had inetructions to toke

too elow in toking o bath (R 269, 270, 27k, 275). FHe olso testified that
one afterncon ot subcamp Alfenheammer, he sow the socused strike on inmete
on the head with n dig ledle besouse the intinte left the column (R 270, 277)e
Witness Goertner testified that he sew the mccused on duty ot the Tour-
heus in Floseenburg checking inecoring columns of inmntes in 194 and 1915.
Vhen the eecused found potatoes or somethinp else on the Immates, he bect
them with e etisk, kicked them severely snd then mede n report on +them,
ecusing the victime to be punighed ogain (R 389)s Inmetes whom he czught
pleidng up poteto peelinga were becten to the ground with o stiok and
kickeds The wictims were Poles, Russisns ond Jews (R 389, 390).
iccuged BOMMITZ, in en extrojudieinl eworn staterent, stated that the
teeused wee o "cellous' and "brutel® men; that he repestedly hesrd from
inmetes thot the socused beet in & brutel memner; ond that he wes once &
witness to such mistreatment by the necueed (R 1763 FoBEx 84 pp. 9, L)

Evidence for Defenge: DlMonglke, on 858 first sergeent et Flossenburg,
teetified thet he kmew the eccused since 1942 ond thot he hed never hesrd

of eny mistrectment of immetes by him (R 647).

The accused testified thnt during his servics et Flosgenburg Ooncentre-
tlon Cemp ho was neeigned to the both houpe detnil only twiece; thot he never
beat any of ‘the new arrivals et the bath (B 80k, 816); thet on +wo or three

ocecelons he wos ssslgned the duty of checking imnmates of the pototc detedl

from them eny food they might possess. He denied thot he ever beet any in-
metes for stealing potetoes, but sdmitted thet he kicked or slapped an in-
nate and pulled his eers (R 806, 81}, B16)s He slso denied thot he ever
kieked eny immetee for pleking up serape of food (R 814). He further
testificd thet he never killed any inrnte with the sxeeption of one Russien
vhom We shot while etealing food from the suuerkraut atorege shed (B 815);
thet he woa detedled ss o especinl guerd in the pauerioout gtoroge shed with
instruetions to apprehend eny person who wae found breaking in; thet @
Ruselen inmete eftempted to steal sore enbboge and, when challenged by

him, tried to escepe; end thot he fired ot thie ipmate with & machine piatol,
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but did not intend to k1ll him (R 798-800, 806-811, 817-82K, L5743 FEx 17A).
The viotim was teken fo the dispensary end it was necegpary for the acoused
to mscertein whether the inmete was desd in order to complete his report of
the ineident (R 800, 801)s He denied that he esid he wes proud that he had
killed this inmate (R 801)s After a report of the ineident was trananitted
%o higher hesdquarters, the scoused was exonerated (R 801)s He further
testified that he arrived at subcamp Altenhammer in Jenuery 1945 where ha
eerved as detall leader (R BO2, 805, 812), He found much stealing going
on emeng the inmetes end immediately put & ptop to it, for whioh many 4n-
metes thanked him (R 802, 805, B12),
The accused also testified thet witnese Fuefrer tostified ageinst him
out of revenge because he had been under suspieion of stealing and besauss
the accused caused him to be treneferred out of L]tenhermer (R 804, B05).
Fe never beet or killed any inmete et Llterhammer and had forbidden eny
form of beetings. He d4d not slap & eepo in the faee twice for beating o
Tewieh inmete (R 803, 80, B13)s No inmete ever died at Alténhammer
(R 80L)s The inmete strength of this subcamp wes epproximetely 590 4o 600,
50 of whom beceme 411 of typhus and were taken beck to the medin camps OFf
these siok lrmetes, none died, snd 29 recovered sufficiently to return to
works The inmotes requested the occused to teke them beek to his detail,
4t the evecuction of this suboamp, the inmote strength wes epproximetely
573 to 57} men (R 801-803, BlL)e Fe further testified thot he often visited
the plants where sirplone construction wee golng on, but he never beat oy
of the inmntes there (R 812) end thet in 1943 he received, as punishment,
10 deys' arrest for helping inmntes by giving them brecd (R 806, B1h).
He testified thet when he wos confronted with witnessee &t Decheu
& former (ermen copo denounced him, but o Polish immate stood by him. The
Polieh witnees deelercd the mccused was & good men, that he sew that the
inmates got their food properly end thet he #topped the cmpo from besting
them (R 805, 806).
In an extrajudieisl sworn steterent the sccused ndmitted thet he of ten

beat inmetes with his hends for offenses conmited ‘egeinegt the cemp rules,




but atoted thot he never used any object or instrument (R U573 P-Ex 178)
Sufficiency of Evidence: The findings of guilty are werrented by the
evidences, The sentence 1s not excessive.

Petitions: No Petition for Review or Petitions for Clemeney were
filed.

Recormendation: That the findinge and sentence be epproved .
2s Otto RINE

Netionalitys German

Lgen 59

Civilion Btatuae Teaeher

Ferty Status: Nazl Party, since 1938
Mildtory Stotuse Woffen 89, Second Lieutenent
Pleay Ik

Findinges G

Sentences 3 yeurs, cormencing 3 May 1945

Evidence for Frosecution: The oecused gerved ot Tloeeenburg Con-

centration Comp from 1939 4o 20 Lpril 1945, first es o eompeny elerk
and then ag first sergecnt of & guard ecmpony. He wme eommipeicned n
seoond lieutenomt in Lpril 19Lk. Le an officer, hie cesigmments in-
oluded positione es treop informetion officer, sfuecstion offiser end
welfere officer (R 271, 603, 768, hi2; B-Ex 125; R L60; P-Ex 213 R 461;
P-Ex 22). The cccused perticipeted in an inmote eveeuction mereh which
left Ylogeenburg in the direction of Dashru, Germeny, on 20 Lpril 1945
(R Lk, Lh5, L53, 768, 769, Lho; P-Ex 1243 R 449; P-Ex 134 R L60: P-Ex 21
R 4613 B-Ex 22),.
Witnsse Kuefner, on inmote of Mossenburg from 1942 until the evneur-
tion, tectified thot the ncoused was in chorge of training the 88 snd
Uletinian guerde cceording to Netional Socislist iders and thet he in-
structed the S9 men in the menner in which 4he sdministration of punish-
nent wis to be earried out (R 271, 272).
Witness Egger, on inmete of Flossenburg from 1938 until the eveountion

. of the cemp, testifled thot he wre o part of the mecond column under th
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about 700 Polish Jewish inmntes who eould no longer sontinue the merch
were ghot to decth at the renr of the ecolumn os they fell out; thot en
8B pergeont fired into the hends of the victims with & moschine pistol

(R Lhl=hi6); thet during the shooting the ncoused wes 150 to 200 meters
away ot the head of the eolurn (R LLE), but he eould fregquently see the

decd bodies lylng in the ditch (R L48)s He further testified that he
did not eee the cocueed with the column after the third dey (R Lib, 443,

452) end thot, while none of the immotes fell out on the first day, on
the two suceeeding drnye over 100 were shot to desth (R LL5, L50).

In an extrojudicinl esworn ptotement, Ebner, an inmete of Flosgsenburg,
etoted thet he participated in the immote evecuation march which lef't
Flossenburg on 20 April 19)5. The Aceused wne the lecder of the second
or third colwm, A&t o helt in the vieinity of Chom the meeused ordered

an 85 pergesont to shoct two Ruselrn immetes who hod follen behind the
eoluwme. The eergeont shot the two inmates in the head with & submrchine
guns The dscused ordered his guerds t0 shoot, without considerntion,
any inmote remeining behind the column. . The acoused gave the witness
15 elepes on the enr because he wos walking too slowly (R 443 P-Ex 134).
In on unsworn pretrial stotement, the recuesd estonted thot ot &
sonferance of camp offiecerg of Flossenburg on 20 Aprdl 1945, Comp
Communder Kosgel ennounced thot orders hod been recelved to eveounte the
aotip to Deohou; that no inmate mist fell into enemy hends; thet et noon
on 21 £pril he left with the second eolumn; that efter chout cne hour he
sow the first dead lying by the rondeide; thet several more times he sow
logging immotes shot; and thet ofter crossing ths Denube river he sow mo
more dend beesuse he had no further contoet with the mereh (R L42; P-Ex
125}

Evidence for Defenses Six witneeess, Heinzmon, Cberbeck, Monske,
Schubert, Michele and acoused HECKER, all former S8 men at Floseendurg,
testified that they hod atiended eduestional lectures given by the

socieed at Flogeenburg snd bed never hesrd him refer 4o the hendling of

imates or odvosate their mistrectrent by the 55 (R 560, 962, éL0, 6L,
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651, 671, B74-575). Helnzman testified that it was imposeible for eny
inmates to ettend these lecturee (R 560)s Accused BEOKER testified that

1t was impomeible for any inmete to overhear the lectures becsuse they
were given after 2000 houre when all inmates were bagk in the proteative

custody cemp (R 875).
Witness Martin, en inmate of Floasenburg, testified thet he never
knew thet the accused sdvocated thet 55 men miewrent inmates; that he nevar
gaw nor heerd of eny mietrestmente of inmetes by him; that he wea & very
straight and pedentip man, very narrow-minded end & typlesl burceuerst; and
thet he d1d not know enything bed sbout the moeused (R 53k, 535)s Heinzmen,
Faulug end Cherbeck also testified #hnt they never heord of the seoused
mistreating imetee (R 560, fe3, £L0).

The secuped testified that he gove leotures 4o the troops in the 88
eamp, but he never dissussed the trectment of the inmetes ot eny of his
lectures (R 768) and that it wae impossible for any inmote to be present

in the 88 ormp theater ct that time of the nighte He woa present et the
lesders' meating on 19 April 1945, when the officers mresent received
definite evoountion instruetions, but he snd another wlderly men received
no orders (R 772, 773)s He ettoched himself o the seeond mereh solumn

os @ guest of Lieutenant Pnchen, the leadér of the moreh blook and seaurad
& ride on e wehicle earrying the belongings of the immates (R 768, T73).

He hed ne cuthority to give eny orders on the mereh, never geve eny, ond
remoined with the oolumn until the third dey (R 769). He saw only one
body clong the rood on the first dey, but could not determine the enupe of
death (R 769, 774)s On the eesond day several terribly mutiloted

SOTpEGE Wert uean.nn the roeds TFive young 8S men end & sergeent told him that
they were & speodnl deteil appointed by the camp eommander to eliminate oll
immetes who fell behind (R 769), whieh wee aonfirmed by Lisutenont Poehen
(R 7704 T74)s He tostified thet shots were heard at the reer of the colum,
but robody eould prevent the shooting; thet he did not miptract ony immntes
on the mareh; thot on the third day he left the moreh becouse he woa

mrelly snd physioally exhousted rnd sould hold out no longer (R 770, T7hy 775):
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and thet he pever saw the eolumn agsin (R T77)s

The good ehorocter ond reputation of the ageused in his home eormunity
befors his entry into the 58 was deseribed in five unsworn mretrinl stote-
menta, in whioh three stoted thet the eccused wes forced to join the Notional
Soelalist Party in order to hold his rosition ca head teocher in the losal
school (R 7535 D-Ex 1943 753; D~Ex 20k+ 7541 D-Ex 2143 7543 D-Ex 2245 755
D-Ex 294,

Sufficlency of Evidense: The findings of guilty ore worrented by the
evidences The sentence is not excessive,

Potitions: No Petition fer Review or Fetition for Clemency waa f£ilad,.

Fecormendetion: Thot the findings and sentence be approved .

9+ Rednhold TEICHMANN
Thie accused wos perved but not tried (R F i 1%

4e  Ottolnr TOMLL

This aooused wes served but not tried (R 1)
5e Georg GUITLHR

This cocused wes nequitted (R 928),
fy  Hednrish SCHMITY

Motlionality: German

lges 51

Civilian Status: Tos tor of Medioine

Porty stotus: Nnzd Party, 1932 to 1937
Militery Stotus: Nonea

Plse: NG ond NO' by resecn of insonity
Findings: )

Sentencen Du&th"’h;r hangling

Evidence for Progesutions The amcoused wos employed ag & civilian

physledan in the immate hospltel at Flossonburg Concentretion Camp frem
2 Moy 194} until 22 Wereh 1945 (R 29, 66, 67, 176; P-Ex 943 R 509, 902,
903).

Witnese Golts, who woe an inmnte of Tlosgenhurg Concen tration Cemp

from Mereh 1943 until April 1945 ond who wes employed es a peoretory in ths
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inmete hospitel, testified that the Bocused, a8 civilien oseistent o the
post phyeiclian snd ee chief of the immate hospital (R 29), wes responsible
for the hospitel (R 60, 66, 67) until Mareh 1945, four weeks before the
cemp wos liberated (R 29)s He further testified that the escused told him
thet he hed reeceived an order from Berlin +o epply the prineiple of
euthanasia end put 4o desth 1,000 immates who were no Iﬂnger cthls to
"ok (R 29, 6B); thot the nooueed sttempted to parry out thie order
syetematicelly (R 30, 87, 88); thet between 75 and 180 irmates met
death by phenol injections edministered by the acoured who personally
sclected the victims to be injected (R 69, 72, 91, 92); that the
Vitneas prepared reporte of these deeths under ths direetion of the
aocused who then signed and forwerded them to the voest phvslaian snd
ormp carmander (R 30, 72, 73); thot later the esoused told the witnese
that the exterrmination order fyom Perlin wes countermended, but the
witnees saw the scoused administer an injfection of phenol inta +he
heart of an 111 end aged Ruseien or Polish inmate and en injeotion of
three empules of evipen o o Hungoarien Jewleh women irmate who hed a
troken leg; end theét both of theee inmates died instently (R 31, 3),
7577y 78)e
Witness Goltz further testified that sll operations in the immnte

hogpltel were performed by the sccused; thet he egpecinlly liked +4n
perform stoméich operstions; that over 50 percent of the stamash opera-
tione perfermed by the aceused were unnecepgsery; thet leboretory ex-
eminstion of the orgens opersted upon showed negative findinge: and

that the immate physieien said thot many of the operstions were un-
necegeery (R 35, 36, 78-81) and were performed without the proper
ingtrumenta for an overation (R ;;lj;)f;I Tnur"-,itncnna;, ineluding Coliz,
teatified that, durlng ths winterﬁérh;igetiel examinations, the ssoused
ordered plok immetes, ineluding emputees, to report to the unheeted
disvensery, dresesd enly 4n 8 shivrt ond o had shest; thot those in
convelessent blooks hed to travel seross the gtreet in'the snow, dresged

only in & sliirt end sheet, for examinetions; end that after mmiuutﬂ‘"
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which required soveral hours, twe to four immatos died in the showar hath
(R 36-39, 102-10k, 107, 112, 146, 1h7, 183, 2liz-2LL).
tncss Goltz further testified that many of the inmetes were dis-
chargod from the hospital while sti1l seriovsly 111; that on ome nceasion
an immato, a French colonel mamed Bische, waa admitted to the hespital
guffering Prom double pnowmonda; and that five daws loter the acouscd
sent thls inmate to work again (B L2).
The witnoss olso bostdfied that from Novemher 1M wntdl the Idbers~
tion, Flosserburg Concentration Camp wag swept by a typhus evidemic from
which over 1,000 irmates died (R 31, 35); that when the accuscd wes told of
the mumben of deaths for one day, he roplied, ™ell, it's a rretty poor ‘
mmbier, 1t's not enongh; that' on annthar.nénaainn when the death rate for
a certain period wag very high, he stated, "™ell, pretty pood, don't wou
think so'; that the accused told him that he had mardicipated in exeou-
tions and that the accused several times said to him in a Joking way,
"Mhare is poing to be nn exccution this afterncon, that means another
bottle of schnapps for me." (R 13). - |
Witness Demmel, #ho sorved as a modleal assistant in the frmate dis- ;'
pensary at Flessonburg, teatifiod thet in 19hL he saw the acoused piwe
phonol injcctions to irmate patdents twice in two days at bloek 13 and
that tho two immates who roccived the injections collapsed (R 125-130),
Witnoss Schottner, an irmate of Flosserburg from 1943 to 1945,
tostificd that he wag & catient in the inmate hoepitel; that he saw the
accuatd give injoctlons to forelpn immate patients in‘hlnr:k 13; that
iorgmuch ns these patients wore sufforine from tyvhus, they were not
expecticd to 1dve much longer; that the roputation of the accused in the
esmp was vory bad; and that the immatcs roferred to him as a veberimry
surgeon (R 137-139), -
Witness Hofhansel, an inmate clork 4n block 21 and the 8S dispansary,

saw 10 roperts of cuthanasia casces The roports contained the rames,
mombers and natiomlitics of the immates who had been subjectod to the

treatment in 19L4 and wore signed by the acensed (R 120, 121, 123). The

decnand sont & Polish imato back to work with a Lo degree centigrade (|
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temperature and this inmate died an hour later (R 122), He further testi-
fied thet on one ocofision the tecused opersted on en inmete without waiting
for & eomplete encathesia (R 122, 123).

Witness Legeals, & French ermy physieien who vworked in the immates!
hospitel under the acoused, testified that all questions of sdministration
were settled by the eccused; that the acoused feiled to take eny etepa to
combat the typhus epldemic until Jepuary 1945; end thet there wes suf-
Ticlent veecine gvmilable, but in January 1945 only the persomnel werking
in the hoepitel received inoeulstions. He further testified that out
of 3,000 ceses of %yphus, only 50 irmates survived (R 1L, 145, 155-158)
end that the accused often refused %o ipeue medioine or order the proper
dlet for patients (R 146, 159, 230-292, 238-240, 2bl, 245, 249).

This witness slmpo testified that the ccoused had o spesisl 1iking
for performing operations end would operate unnesessarily for practice
(R 152); thot he performed 7% stomach operations, 10 gellstone operations.
three kidney operaticns, one hernie operetion, one sterilizetion of &
Gypey woman end epproximetely 900 amputotions, the majority of which
were unnecegsery; and thet ell operations were performed under vary had
conditions and many without any anesthesia, Desths resulting from thie
praatice ineluded 52 from gtomaph sparationa, six from gallstone opere-
tions and two frem kidney operations. Thie testimony 1al gorrobora ted
by elx other witnesses (R 118, 119, 133, 147, 148-151, 1he-143, 172-178%,"
222l 365-368; 1707 P-Ex Th).

The atme witness testified thet he sew the sceused sdminister an
intravenoue injection of evipen to & femele inmate who hed sueteined a
frootured thigh; that the domags wes much stronger than that needed for
ansothesle end resulted in the patient's irmedlste dasth (R 182); 4hat
the nesuped operated unnecesserily on e young French inmate, 17 years
of uge, who wes suffering from pleurisy; thet this patient died & week
later (R 181)1 thet during the +yphue epidemie in 19kl, +he sscuscd

treated only one patient out of every 10; and thet he falsified the blood

analysis reporte which ghowed the presence of typhus (R 184). i
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Wiltness Garstka, a Polish inmate dootor et Flossenburg from Lpril
1943 until the liberation, testified that the amooused wes introduced ag
the person in charge of the inmate hospital (R 95); that nll petiente
who could stand were discherged from the hospital for work; thot eeveral
bedridden patients leter recelved tubsrouler injections from the mecused
and diedy that he refused to sccept any new tuberculer inmates e
patientea; end thet, in his opinlon, sending tubereular inmetes to work
doomed them to death (R 96-99, 113, 11hL).

He further testified thet the eccussed wae the only doetor permitted
to opérate on inmetes (R 101); that in 194} he opernted on & Polish in-
mate for duodenel uleers for whieh the petisnt recedved no poet operative

ettention and died four daya later (R 101. 11K): thot the aseusad per-
formed one stomach operation without any prelimineary exemination (R 101);
thet, in enother instence, the asoused diegrosed n page as tumor of the
broin when the Xeroy did not indiaete & tumnr; that on one oseesion he
pointed out to the accused that sn immate wes probebly suffering from
inflemmation of the kidneys, but the ascused peld no ottention end sent
the petient awavet and thet five dAeva later the iomata died (R 111). He
ordered & dissection of the ribe of seven inmetes who hed pus in the
pleurel cavitise and did not ellow their dressings to be chenged. L2111
seven patlents died after o week (R 102). The assused forkade the in-
mate doctors to exemine patients. Hie ettitude wos not sympathetic or
golicitous to the sick (R 106).

Viitnosas Bipnclk, an ilrmaots 0% Flogsenburs from 19LL un+il tha likerction,

testified thet in Lpril or Mey of 194k he sew the acoused beat and kick in-
mates at the dispensery; that the witness was one of the victime (R 250-
253); thet he koot immatco pufforing frem fover, kicked thom and throw
them out of the dippensery; end that in three aeses the frmetss disd the
next vorning (R 293, 261). He further testified that the acoused mceeptsd
imnmotes for hoppitealication ond troatment only if they wore willingz 4o be

nmaﬁd upon (R 260).
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Wiitnesn Geutsch, an immets »f Flossenburg from 1941 until the evooustion,
testificd that the immetee' fitness for work wes determined by the sccused;
that sometimes 1,000 to 2,000 inmates were grthered into the bath house snd
exemined in o ghort time (R 344-346); that the eccused personally selscted
imntes for transfer to Bergen-Peleen Coneentretion Camp; thet some of those
selected were suffering frum tuberoulosis end others were ineapable of working;
g.nd thot he hed heerd that Pergsn-Belsen was o plece where immetes died shortly
efter thelr arrival (R 350, 358, 359).

Evidence for Defense:r The mcoused tdstified thet he arrived in Flosssnburg

in May 194k end worked es & civilien physician in the inmete hospitel until
22 Moreh 1945 ot which time he beesme 111 with typhus (R 902, 903); that,

while working as a physician, he was under the jurisdiction and control of
verious 89 physiclensi that his possibilities for sction in ¥lossenburg were

etrlotly limited es he could not do anything without the prier permission
frem his superiors (R 920, 176; B-Exe 84, 94); ond thet he wes not permitted
to slgn eny documents in the comp, not even the phermaey book or the operation
register (R 923). He further testified thot in June 194l, an order errived
frem Berlin to peleet cnd report oll immetes who were uneble to work; that
in October 194l 52 Lt. Col, Fischer, the post phyeieian, stoted thet crders
hed been received to the effect that sll frmates unfit for work were to be
given dnjections under the prineiple of esuthenogle; end thet the mecused,
together with Fischer, 55 Ceptein Ir. Gleger, ond on inmete elerk, went to
the imetes' barrecks end sgelested immates for the injeetions. He admitted
that he marked the foreheceds of the inmates so seleoted with the number
"130"s He tsetified further that he brought the rubber gloves, the phenol
solution and the hypodermie syringes to block 13 where the injections were
administered. Hs denied that he geve eny of the injectione, but testified
thet they were edminiptered by two Jewish inmate doetors under the super-
vigion of Dr. Gieger (R 903, 904, 926). He denied further thot he aver
stated to witness Goltz that he had mdministered theee injections, but he
did tell Gleger ebout these injestions in order to worn other inmates. He

dended that any written reports were mede of the killings eince this progrem
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manners The accused teatified further that in hie opinion euthanasia was
justified in some cases in Floseenburg (R 904, 905, 926).
: He elgo denied the testimony of witnesses Goltz and Legesis concerning
the treatment of an oged Ruseion imnmats epd testified thet he did not in-
Ject thie inmate with phenol. However, he edmitted using comphor oil.
Regerding hie trectment of the Hungerien Jewees who wog suffering from
thrombosis of the leg, he testified that he gave her an injeetion of
sombetin and that she did not recovers He then geve her an injeotion of
sdrenelin into the heart, but she died while being trested. He denied that
he ever used evipen. He testified further thot if he hed wented to kill
this women, he would not heve had her transferred from the bunker to a
specinl rooms No wltnesees were present at the operastion cther than Dr.
Folok ond the apeistont, Jonieki (R 905-907).

He vleo denied that he performed operations in en unsonitary menner es
testified to by Garstkse and Lepedis. He testifled thet all operations st
Flogsenburg were performed in the seme menner ce in any e¢linie. He testi-
fied that of 500 operctions performed by him only four ehowed eny évidenocs
of pus; thet he selected surgienl instruments needed for operations,
exomined them for fitness, hed them pterilized end kept them surgieclly
clean; thet up until December 194} the accused had performed 280 operstions
on immates in Flossenburg with a mortality rate of 7.8 percent (R 907,
910-912)+ ond that of LO stomash operations performed by him, only four
potients died (R 907). Mo stomach patients were opercted upon until a
ehemienl test end an X-rey were mode by Dre Polak (R 908)s The eccussd
tastified further thet witnesees Goltz end Legecis were not medieally
qualified to testify whether or not opersticns performed by the mecuged
WETC nooéssnry. fia thev saw pontlents only efter the operstions had been
performed. He denied thet he hed operated upon an inmete without meking
any preliminery exeminetion as testified to by witneee Gerstke (R 909).

The asansed further tootdifled thot hie trentment nf witnassses Bargmann,
Ferene ond Nelss was medicelly ond surgieally corrects He denled thet he

beat the immates with a stick (R 924, 925). He wleo denled thet he eyer
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beet, kicked or miestrented any inmetes with the exception of slapping a few
petients to woke them up after & mild enesthetic (R 913).

He testified thet the visited the hospltal blocke twice daily exeept
Tuesdays ond Fridays, which were opersting days, and exsmined esch inmotej
that in words which contained triple-tlered beds, it was not possible to con~
duct a yroper physienl exsminotion and mo those inmotes were teken to the
ambulatory room; that petients who were seriously ill or hed high fever were
permitted to remein in bed end no petient hod to wolk through snow %o reech
the exerdnetlon room, inessmueh as the walke between the slek barracks wers
roofed (R 915, 916).

The neoused teetified thot he wes on & business trip to several subsomps
from 27 Oetober to 3 November 194l and, upen returning, woe told that typhus
had broken cut; thet a quarentine wes immedietely catablliashed es to inmates
who wore consldered es the possible souree of the epidemie; that these in-
mites received blood tosts and were trested for the disease; thet in the

first epidamie, 800 immetes became 111 end 200 died. No preventive
inosulotions were given during this first epidemic becouse the acoused did

not heve the necessery serum. During the second epidemie, in 1945, ep~
proximately 800 inceulations were glven by the accused. The asccused
testified thot he 4id not falelfy reports of blood tests whish showed the
wesence of typhue. During the second epidemic, 563 dmmates contrected
typhus and 39 dleds The heedquerters refused to plece guerds at the
quersntine barrecks and so isolation could not be enforesd. Thers wes in-
sufficient disinfection eguiprment to rroperly movide for all the immates
at ¥logeenburg (R 916-919).

The socusad dﬂﬁi&ﬁ thet he hed improperly treeted immetes who suffered
from tuberanlasis snd tertitied that he veed the prasaribed method of oure
with the result thet only five %o eight of the petiente inpeulated dled,

He also denisd that he plenned fto liguidate all tubersulous immetes. He

tastified thet he went to Ferlin and spake with Tr. Inlling, the mediasl
ehief, concerning the treotment of these irmotes. FHe was told that o con-

valegeent camp would be opened et Bergen-Belsen. Two shipments of immates
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suffering from open tubereulosies were sent to this cemp on orders from T,
Lolling (R 921-923). '

The aooused further testified that he partieipated in the phyaieal
exmminetions of ifmates to be sent to outdetnils to work; that every
inmete sc sslsoted was leter exomined by an £S5 doctor befors he left
eamp; that these exmainetions were conducted in the bath house; end thet 1t wee
announced to all inmrtes thot those feeling 111 should report to the examining
doctor ns they filed by (R 913-915),

Ludwlg von Krestee-Fischer, on inmate of Flossenburg from 1944 until the
iiberation, testified that he suffered from a hesrt oramp and wes trested by
the neoused who visited him seversl times a week, trented him very well and
mede hie recovery poseible (R 462-L€5); that he never saw the acouscd beat
eny inmete at the dlspensary; thet he never heord thet he hed done so; end
thot the ecoussd d4d not admit ell irmates who needed hoepl telization beceuse
of lack of sproes Only those who hed & chonee 40 be paved were cdmitted
(R U465y 466, 183)s The nooused continually fought for the enlargement of
the dispensory (R Lb6). He further fostified that he did net know of any

operations performed by the sceused in ¢ negleetful menner: thot his repute-
tion in camp wes that of n eurgeon of high gqualificstions (R L66-L68); that

his position with the 88 perscnnel wes not very goods that the 52 dootors
did not think much of the aceused; end that he never hecrd thot the scoused
hed killed any inmate at Flossenburg (R 467),

Witness Frenz won Krestes-Fiecher, en immnte of Flossenburg from 194k
antil Lpril 1945, testified thet the acoused ordered extre food retions for
the witneps end these rotions were resceived by him until atopped by the
carp commender (R 4BL, 490, 494); thut he never heord the acoused's neme
mentioned in comnection with the fatal infections which were being given to
Inmetes et the hospitel; and thet nn 83 officer wns in charge of the hoepital

and wos the superior of the aceused (R 491, 49)).

Witnoss Giesselmann testifisd that the Arevced wne o aiwilicn physision

in the immate hospitel under the dirveet charge of D, Sehnobel Whose superior

wae Drs Fischer (R 506, 510); thot ot no sime wrs the cooused in dmniﬂ.r
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charge of the inmate hospital (R 520); that 4n 194 meny trensports arrived
bringing sick inmates; that therewere herdly enough bondages in the hospital
end insufficient medicines (R 511, 512); that the immate physieians proised
the cccused for his ekill ap ¢ purgeon; thot seversol immates who hed been
opernted upon by the ncoused praiesd him after they hed recovered (R 512);
ond thet Goltz, who testified agerinst the meoused, sleo wap cn pdmirer of
hie and hed sndd he wos o very ospeble surgeon (R 519)s He further testified
thot he never mew or heard thet the ncoused mistrested or beat any immate
or thet he ceused the denth of anyone through anrnlamnéaa (R 512, 520)., Hie
neme wes never mentioned in connestion with the euthensela killings (R 51k,
518).

Witness Wittlg testified thet the ncoused trented sick inmetss in the
bunker during the time he was in solitory confinement, performing hie duties
thoroughly; thet he eome irmedistely when he wos enlled, made thorough

exeminetions, preseribéd necessory medieine and trested all inmetes the
seme regerdless of thelr rece, netionclity or religion; that he never saw

the scoused migtrect cnyone; end thet he did not participete in any execution
at the bunker between June and September 194h (R 59~ 596).

Witneps fdem, an 85 physicion ct Flossenburg, testified thet the scoused

mea the only physicinn at the immete hospital; thot he and the secused
ocoupled equal positions under Dr. Fissher, the post physicinon (R 528, 530);
that he never sow or heerd thet the scoused mistrected eny of the lmmates
(R 529); thot the aceuged presented a list to Dr. Flscher of ell inmetes
whe were to te uparatsﬂfg';;d that 1t wes hie helief that the secused tock
proper preccutions for the sterilizetion of instruments end the operating
room (R 530, 5310«

Witness Schubert, an 88 master sergeeant ot Flogpenburg, testified thet
he heard imotes say that they beldeved in the sceused and would trust him
to opernte on them (R 651). Witness Michkele, on 85 sergecnt nt Flossenburg,

teatified thot the seoused wes 2 guiet men end did the begt he could in
the short time eveiloble (R 667). Belger, in two pretriel statemente,

stated thet the eecused wes not permitted to work independently et Flosssnburg
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end that befors he sould underteke eny operation, he haed to eeoure permipsion
from the pest physieian (R 7573 D-Ex 26A) R 759; D-Ex 274)s A&fter Dr. Fischer
beoame popt phyeledien, the mocused wee deprived of his former authority to
eign officiol pepers. Every request to the phormooy, each death report mnd

every medicel form wes signed by Dr, Fischer, personally., The accused vits
not permitted to partieipete in executions (R 760; D-Ex 284).
Suffisdienoy of Fvidenge: The findings of gullty sre werrented by the

evidense, The sentenoe im not exeezsive.

Petlitions: MNo Petition for Review nor Petition for Clemency wee filed,

Recommendetion: That the findinge and sentence be approved.
T« Sepp SCHMATZ
Nationality: German
Lee: 33
Civilien Statuar Loogkamith
Porty Status: Nazi Porty since 1937
Militery Stotus: Wiaffen 83, Mester Scrgeant
Plea: NG
Findings: G
Sentences Life imprisonment

Evidenos for Proseoution: The ncoused wos an 88 Technlecl Sergesnt ond
ooted as roll call lesder nt Flossenburg Conecentrotion Camp from 1939 untdl .
20 Lprdl 1942, affer which time he served ns detoil lender at subemmp Dresden,
o auh.cu.mp of Flossenburg, until Oectober 1942 (R 193, 21}, 223, 251, 348,

392, 408, W11, h2b, 436, 438, 608, 719, 826, L55; P-Ex 1L,

Viltnese Oberwnllner, en inmate of Flossenburg, testified that the
coousged wop usually o member of the exeoution detall end often the lesder;
that, upon his return from executions, hie clothing wos coversd with blood;

end thet two other 8S men were heard to chernmoterize the accused's be-
hevior ot an déxeoution by saying thet the accused locked like & buteher
(R 194-196).

Witonese Behur, on immete, testified that the 2coused participated in

exsoutions end was seen merching to the shooting ronge with & detrdl.
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Lfter Tonusry 19142 eight to ten groupe of Russlens, consisting of 20 o 30
inmates each, were brought from Earlsbod for execution ot Flossenburgs They
were token to the bnth house and all their elothing wee removed with the ax-
ception of their frousers. They were then 4uken out in peirs to the shooting
renge and exocuted (R 413-417)s Six hundred end twenty Polish imotes from
Luschwltz were syetematicnlly executed in groups of 15, 20 and 25, The accused
wae In cherge of the execution detoil for these FPolish inmates nnd wes armed
vith e pletol (R 417, L21-42k)s The witnese further testified that on one
cccesion the meoused beot & Foligh immote who, through & mistske in the pall-
ing of the nomes, appecred for exesution (R 419),

Witness Stegmaler, an inmets, testified thet he was & sorpse earrier
for the excoution detall after Januery 1942; that the Poligh and Russian
lmmetes were executed neer the crematory by rifls fire in groupe of 10 to
20; that the mocused wee mrmed with e pletol mnd the other members of his

detell carried rifles; that in April 1942 the method of sxecution was
shanged to deadly injections; end that the acoused pertieipated in exeeu-
tions both by shocting end by injeetion (R 429-435)s Witness Kuefner, on
immate 2% Floegsenburg from 1938 until the evmouation, testified that he
gaw & liet of names, ineluding thnt of the accused, of 83 men who received
special retione of echnappe end olgarcttes for having perticipeted in exeou~
tions (R 267, 26B, 283).

Witness Friedrich, an lmmete of ¥Flossenburg Coneentration Cemp, testified
that after Jenuery 1942 he served es an orderly for the mcecused; thet the
eccused pertielpated in exemutions nt Tlassenburg and weuld return twe o
throe times & week with his elothing bloody (R 436, 437, Li1); that 1% was
sald that the ccoused administered the ooup de grace (R L42); that after
1942 the method of exeention wam ahenged 4o deedly injeeticns; that the
vecused was ssen weering o white cost whenever executions by injsctions took
Place (R 437)3 and thet the sccused told all the inmates, who were cssembled
for thia purpose, that he wnld k411 4hem when the +ime omms (B L99).

This witness further testificd thet he worked in the seme capaolty for

thie accused st subeamp Dresden, where the cccused wes the ocemp leader
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(R 438); that an escaped Tugoslav irmate was returned to +he camy shot in
the pelvis and left arm; that the acoused ordered that no bandapes, food or
help of any lt'.f.nd be given him; and that the ia_mate died three or four davs
later (R 438, h,f.!?). itnesses Binek and Greu, who were also immates at
aubeamn Dresden, corrcborated the testimony concerning this ineldent. The
Accused heat witness Binek with two hroomsticks until they were broken and
then beat him on fcha Bice with & riding orop or dog whip for approximately
10 ‘mimtes (R 255, 257, 392 «399). ‘

Witness Haag, & Gexman immate of Flossenburg, stated in an uneworn
extrajudicial statement that in 1942 a orippled inmate who had neither arms
nor lsgs was talen to the arrest vard and shot in the neck with a pistol
by the accused; that the accused was heard to say "This one went to heaven
without wings"; and that on a Sunday the accused made a speech to the
aggembiled immates telling them that they would all be shot with machine
guns when the enemy approached (R L02; P~Ex 114), .

[Witness Firsch, an immate of Flossenburg from 1900 until 1913 (R 212,
213), testified that the au-:mafrd was feared throughout the camp; that he
beat and kicked immates (R 215, 216); that on one occasion in May or June
of 1912 a Polish irmate, who had eacaped, was recaviured, was made to bend
over & table, was given at least 50 strokes with a stick and then was ldcked
by the accused; that two days later the accused beat this Polish imate again
for 10 to 15 minutes; that two days thereafter the vickim et admitt-ad'tn the
hospitaly and that a report wae later received tkat he had died (R 21, 215,
A7-219)4

Tiitnese Oberwallner testified that the acoused was knovm throughout the
camp 45 A brubal man and a beatery that he beat irmates at the roll call
aquare; that on a Sunday he beat appraxima-wlj 250 1rlinﬂtas'nf one hlnok
with an oxtall whip as they paraded before hWim (R 193, 194, 208, 206);

and that he told the assembled irmates that if anything went wrong ha would

pergonally shoot each one of them (R 196, 197). The testimony of the witnees
Krawjewskl corroborated the testimony concerning this incident (R LoB-Li08).
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Witness Oautsch testified that the acoused Jeicked irmates and beat them
with his fiats u_r_wit-h a rubber club on the roll eall square for no reason
thateoever (R 3hkL, 3L9). ,

Acensed Becker; an inmate at Flosserburg frgm 1938 until 1945, tatit‘:‘tad
that he saw the accused, on the roll call square, punch lrmates in the jaw,
beat them in the face with his hand anrd kick them and that many of them fell
to the ground bloeding (R L26-428),

Mtness Schur testified that during the time the aceused was roll call
leader he interrogated newly arrived irmates at the bath house and beat them
with his Meat and that he saw the accused mistreat immates at the bath house
on 30 to li0 oceasions (R Llo<h12 ), : :

In an axtrajudicial sworn statement, Verozkowskl, a Pelish irmate of
Flosserburg, stated that in 1942 the acouscd hit him with a gpade, snlitbing
the bones of his right wrist which canged him to require two months!
hospitalization; that during this time he saw the accused knock a Russian
imate to the ground and kick him on his neck and body, cavsing serious
physical injurica; that he saw the aceused mistreat inmates contimally; and
that he was gemerally known as a killer (R LOl; P-Bx 104).

The accused admitted in an extrajudieial sworn statement that he beat
immatos with his hand and with a stick 3 that he could not state the murbar
of times; and that soms of the imates may have bled after being beaten.

e also stated that same of the immates "eonducted themselves in such a
Areadful and indescribable way that is is understandable that we boat thom

sometimes a littlo harder so they had to be helped and supportsd" (R LEG;
P-Ix LA,

Evidonce for Defense: Tha accused testified that he served =t Flossen-

burg Concentration Camp from 1939 until the spring of 1942; that he 'bannme\
41 and vms hospitalized at Karlsbad betwoen 22 December 191 and 2 Fabruary
19425 that he returmed 4o Flosgerburg for a short period until he departed
for subcamp Dresden on 30 Anpll 1923 and that he ramained at Dresden until
Bgptember 1942 when he wag sant to front line duby (R 826, 85L). The un-
mworn pretrial statoment of Bolger, an S8 man whe served as a staff mﬂiwgl' '
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clerk a2t Flossenburg, corroborated the tostimony of the accused concerning
tho timo spent in the hospital (R 795; D-Bx 304).

The necused Mirther j:.uatif:l.ed that he naver rartinipated in any exsou-
tlon after 1 January 1942, but in 19l1 he witmessed four exscutions in which
a total of 18 porsons waore shot to death § that he did n?'h fire any weapon in
these exceutions; that, aftor the vietims had hean shat, 1t wnn_hs.n duts to
tum thu-hnd?.uu over to the physician for examination; _and ‘t.l:xat, E.n 'bu::ning
those bodies, his boots and glowes became bloody (R 827, 828, 830, 631, B51),
He testified that he never mistroated any of fahn rintime and that the meres
shot vag adminietered by an 88 officer (R 831, 851). Ho alse tesiified that
the last Russian immates arrived in Octaber of 19415 that until he loft for
Dresdon no other Russians arrived at Flossanhurgs and that he novér particd-
rated in any exscutions of Russisn inmates (R Bl0). He never wore a white
medienl coat in company with Dy Trommer -':md nevor participated in the
adnimistration of fatal infections (R A0, A1), He donded that he ovir
mistreated any immatos on roll eall square or that he ever beat any of them
with a stick or kicksd them in a brutal or sadistic manner (R &3‘.1.]. Ho
admitted that he alanmd some irmaten for 'u-'rnla{zing eamp orders, but he
never slapped anyonc without a “reason (Rt 831, 832, LS5; P-Fx UA). Home
of the vletims u._E‘ his slapping required hospitalization nor did any death
result therefrom, but he admitted that aome of them may have blod afdear
having boen slapped by him (R 833).

The accused denicd that he beat immates with an oxtail whip in 1942
a5 tostlficd Yo by witness Oautach and etnted that no ouch ineident evor
took place (R 839). Mo also denfed the block L incident (R 839, 8L0). He
testiflod that no remarks were made to assembled irmntes to the effect that
ko would ghoot them all (R 841}y that ha was not irmvolved in the incident
whoro *Fhu escapad Polish irmate wms muupt.umdf (R 8L2)s and that witness
Krach, who testified concorning this incident, was a homo-soswnl Lrmate
and had received slapas frem the aneveed 4m 19L0. On twe oceaz Lo whun
the accused yme confronted by Kirsoh 4n the Une-up at Dnohaw, Kirsch never
mentioned this incident but apoke orly of the fﬂc‘b that he had besn sla
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The accused testified further that the lnecident of the egoaped Yugoslav
imate occurred at subecamp Dresden in September 192 (R B3k); that 4he
Tugoslay had been shot in the left lower arm and in the stomach during his
recapture (R 335; Bh?; BUB); that the accused then placed him in the hospital
w‘barq he recelved medical attontion; and that the immate was then taken to
his quarters and put o bed. The hospital doctor and the camp vhysician
preseribod that no feod or !_irink be glven this imate because of his
intestioml injuries (R 836, 637)s This immate received medical attention
on the sccond day when his wounded aym was rebandaged., On the third day he
dicd beeausa of his injuries amd bocause of cating food contrary to the
doctor's orders (R 837-839)s Tho accused testificd that he punished witnosa
Hinele at Dresden beecause he was Involved with a young 85 man in a plot te
smgglo mail out of camp (R 8L3%). : .

Witnese Ciesselmann, an immate of Flosserburg from 1938 to April 19,5,
tegtified that he know the aceused until the carly part of 1942 when he was
transforred to an outdetail; that he nmever heard that anyone died as a regult
of any action by the accused; that the ac?usu‘d'waa quite rough and beat in-
mates who had dono scmothing wrong (R 506, 509, 517); that the acotsed had
to bo prosont at exccutions as a matter or course because he mas rell call
leador; and that he saw the accuscd carrying a brief case to oxnoutiors
imemuch as he hm? to read the sentences. Ho never was seen carrying a
rifle (R 516, 521, 52l)s | :

Witnese Schuler, an inmate at Flosserburg frem 1938 until Octobor 1942,
testifiad that he often saw the sccused on the roll call aquars when he slapped
immates behind the cars and knocked some of them to the grourd, but he pever
gaw him lcick any inmates Nono of these victims ever bled or Eliad as a resgult
of mistreatment by the aceusad (fr. 598-€00)s Witness Stelzner, an immate of
Flossonburg from 1939 until 1943, sorroborated the teatimony of Schulor amd
teatificd further that it wae mocessary for the accused to punish inmates in
order to maintain sanitation, order and discipline in the camp; that he mover
punished an irmmato without a reason (R 606; 5@9; €1h); that he vms elapped
by the accused for a theft he had committed (R €09); and that he never aaw
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the aceused woaring a white medical pcoat in company with Dr. Trommer. He
naver heard of any shipment of Russians from Karlsbad and he never hoard
that the accused had participated in oxeoutions of Russian immates, He
togtificd furthor that it was impossible for the accused to beat 250 in-
mates at random on one occaslon (R 61, 615). The accused often gave food
to the irmates and showed no preference among them bocause of their
mbiomlities or religions (R €09, 61L, €15). '
Witness Muller, an irmate of Flosserburg from 1938 until July 19lL,
testificd that he knew the accused from 1939 until the begimning of March
19L2 (R 718, T19); that he paw the acoused slap irmatas with his open hand
on the roll ¢ell squaro; and that the witness himself was slapped in this
mammer by the acecused beeause he had been fighting with other irmates. He
testificd further that he r;awr saw or heard of the accused having boaten
any inmate with e stick or having kicked any immate (R 720)3 that he never
saw any drmate bleed ag a result of mistroatmont by the accuscd nor did he
ever sco any irmate knooked down by the aceusad; that no death ever resulted
Lrom slﬂ.p‘pin.?:s b:.r_'t.ha accused; and that he mever slavped any lrmate without
eanuse (R 721, 722, 730). The accused gave instructions to mll foremon that
nobody was permitted to beat or mistroat any of the immates (R 721). He
testlfied that he never saw the nccused dressed in a white medical coat
accompanying Dre Trammer; that he never saw or heard that the accused
marticipated in administering fatal injections {?r_l 722)5 that he mever saw
the accused carrying a rifle or a machine platol, but did see him armed
with a pistol; and that the accused was alwmys present at excoutions in the
capacity of a witnoss (R 723). The witness saw the accused proceeding to
exseutiors in 1901 only (R 724)s He never saw or heard that the accused
beat 250 Russian irmates on one occasion (R 722). The accused gave
elgmrattes and food to many inmates (R 721). On one occasion after tha'
irmmatos had been waiting on the roll oall square becanse of a heavy fog,
tho accused ordered the immates to return to thelr quarters which provoked
an argumont with 88 Bergoant Schirner who had ordered the Imates 1‘:6 remain
on the roll cell square until the fog 1ifted (R 727). The irmates, wham the
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witness knew, had a pood opinion of the acoused. Then he was transfarred

to gubeanp Dresden, the majority of the irm‘!:-m;! tried to be transforrad with
him in order to be in his work detail (R 725, 729). This testimony was

~ corroborated in part in the ureworn pretrial statement of Zichmer (R 755;
D-Fxe 210 ) o

Sufficleney of Fyidonce: The findings of muilty are warranted by the

evidonces The sentence is not cxcessive. ‘
Potitionss No Pa‘ﬁiti-.un for Review nor Potition for Clemency was filed,

Reeommondations That the findings ard sentence be approved,
8. IFriedrich BECKER

Mationalitys Gorman

Age Lo

Civilian Statuss Construction cxpert
Party Statuss Nazi 'Hsrt.v sinece 1937
Military Statuss Waffon 55, Sergeant
Pleas o)

Firdings s G

Sentenes s Life imprisoment

Evidence for Prosccution: The accused was an 55 sergeant at Flogsenbure

Concentration Camp fram 3 Fubruary 1941 until the swvacuation on 20 April
1945 (R L60; P-Exs 19, 20)s During his period of duty at Flossenburg, the
acovged garved 2s a clerk in the politieal dopartment, from Jamuary unt-f!.l
November 1942, as a clerk in the protective custody camp administmbion,
from Wowumber 1942 untdl June 194k, and as chiaf of the labor alloeation and
mu?itmr:nt office, from June 19Lk vntil the nmmmt;inn (R b5, 188, 213, Bs9,
268, 3, 197, 532, 656).

Witness Oberwallner testificd thet at lsast on 20 difforent ccoasiors
he mow the ac?mﬂd procaeding along toward the ecourt in the rear of the
arrost bunken, :}rmud_with a small calibre automatie rifle with a silencer
attachod (R 192, 193, 20)); that indieidual sxsoutions were carried out
thero by rifle shots into the mpe of the neck (R 203, 219.‘3) 3 that he saw
the vietims with wounds inflicted by smill calibre rifle, but did not see
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any of the oxoeutions (R 211); that he heard a telephone conversation wherein
the acousod informed Friteche that he was poing to carry out an exoeution

(R 201, 202); and that he heard that the accused had mistreated several
Russian officars in the political department (R 202?.

Wit:_-:.naa's Michaleowiczi, an 1mfmta of Flogsenburg, testified that in the
forenoon, sometime in darch 1945, the accused came to the kitchen and saw
a Folish Jew ivmato onting potatecss that he beat the Polish Jew on the head
with a2 etiok and tramplod him to deathj and that the victim's body was earricd
to the cromatory (R 298-305). He furthor tostificd that he wme beaton seweral
times by the aceused bocausc he wig not pocling the potatoes well and that
the accused heat many nthe‘r_irmi_zaa whom he caupht talking or saw neglecting
thelr potato pealing (R 299, 302, 303). : :

Krzywanowaldl, an immate at Flossernburg from Jamuary until April 1945,
testified that ho was quartered in block 11 from which imnmates weore sont out
on trensports; that the accused mma_tn t‘nr block frequently and beat frmates
with his hand and kicked them (R 370, 372, 377-379); that; on oho goeas ion
when 100 immates had lined up in front of the block for ?himan'b, an .tnn-.?te:
mn back to the barracks to pick up his bread ration and, as he came out,
the acoused shot him; that with three other 1nmtea; he corrded the victim's
body to the washroom; and that th::'nﬂxt morfﬂ.ng the corpse was carried mway
by the disposnl detail (R 370, 371, 37h~-377, 380-382).

Witness Ooltz tostified that he kn-mr the accused as chinf of the laber
commrd tment office (R 1S) and that it wos his duby to send worthless inmatos
to other camps and to send irmates from the main camp to subcamps. These
i.mmtm:_a were placed in mumbercd catopories aceording to their physical con-
ditlon, Noss 1 and 2 being thogo in tho best condition and No. 3 being
those capable of ?nlzr Hight worlce The rumbers above three wers not capabls
of any work (R L5, Lé). In the winter of 19lL-19h5 the accused received
an order from Berlin to send 150 strong men o a subeamp. He wont to
accused Dy SCHMITZ and asked bim to procure 150 irmates from eategorics Nog,
1and 2 BSCHMITZ informed the aceused that there were not thet many immates
in that good condition in Flossenburg and advised the accused to notify

|



Berlin of that fast, The accused and Ir. SCEMITZ composed & convoy of
150 inmates without regard to eategory. The commander of the camp
discoverad that 20 to 30 of these were unfit for heawy work, but
accusad SCHMITZ insisted that they were not 111 and ths convoy was
dispatched to & suboamp where the heavieet work was demanded of them
(n 48, 47, 523-60).

The above testimony was strongly corrcborated by witnesses Cautech
and Kusfner, and to some desree by accussd SOHMITZ (R 264, 265, 288,
206, 345-348, 357, 358, 361, 590, 692, 176; P-Ex 94, p. 5).

Witness Kirech testified that in July 1942 he was lnterrogated by
the mcoused with & group of 15 other inmates; that the sccused forcad
the witnese to bend over a table and receive five or eix blows with a
atick and a punch in the face; and that all of the 15 inmates raceived
beatings which esusod them to bleed from the nose and mouth and from
which they received blsckened ayes (R 212-214, 216, 217).

Nyidence for Defenge: The sccused testified that during his
' gervice at Mlossenburg he never ocarried any rifle equipped with a
gilencer; that he never participated in any exacutions (R B70-872);
and that he never had any conversation with 85 Captain Friteche to
the ef-eet that he was going to the execution place (R BE9-871), He
tostified further that he never bheat any inmates during interrogations;
that he did not use an oxwhip to extort confessions (R 872, 8AB); and
that he never kicked or beut any inmste with a stick or other instrument
(& 872, B77). He edmitted slapping inmates on three occasions btut
never to the axtent that any of them bled or required hospiltalization
(R 877, 848). He testified that witness Kirsch testified azainet him
out of revenge (R 876, 877); that he had not beaten a Polish inmate to
deeth with & stick 8t the potato peeling detail (R 866, B67); that he
had not killed any inmate at Tlossenburg; and that he had no comnection
with, or supervision over, tho alloeation of labor in subcsamp Hers-
btruck ineemuch aa thet subeamp had ite own labor allocation leader

(R 863, 884, B90), Ho further testified that it was his duty to salect
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inmates and form the shipmente aceording to ordere and instructions
of the camp commander; that the doctors determined which srtegorive
should zo %o spenified eubcamps (R BB3, BB4, BBY); that he could
nct influcnce tho deoctora in thelr selectlon of inmates for work; and
that he hal never attempted to do so. The dogtore were responsible
for permitting an unfit inmate to be trensferred to & subeamp (R BB6).
He donied that he ever changed the pﬁyniu&l category of any innatos
to got rid of them or that he had ever sald that he know how to
liquidate inmates (R 873, BE4). The shipment of inmates was sssembled
and checked by the post physician, the c2mp commender and hie adjutant
(R 861). Inmates were sent to outdetails ae @ form of punishment
only uson the express order of the camp commander or his adjutent
(R BE&, 837, 896), The accused remembered & shipment of 150 inmatas
that left Floesunburg in March 1945, bdut asserted that at that time
thers wera over 12,600 unemployed inmates omd it would have besn an
engy matter to procure 150 men fit for work (R 664, 866), The
agcused further denied that he ever boat any inmates with 4 stlck
during the formation of & lmbor transport and thab sny mistreatments
oeourred in Ris presence furing such formetions (R 868), He spaoifi-
eally Jenied beating a FPollsh inmate with & etéck in Meroh 1946 in the
visinity of block 11 esnd denied that he ever kicked any of the inmates
(X B68), He aleo fenied that he had ever shot an jnmate in Marsh 1945
furing the formetion of 4 traneport. Witness Adam, mn 8§85 chysieian
in the inmatos' hospital, corroborated the testimony of the aceused in
purt (¥ 527, 528),

Two trothers,Iudwiz and Frens von Krestee-Flacher, testifled that
thoy worked in the labor allocation department under the sccuse: (R 463,
470, 485, 486); that they never saw or heard that the accused mis-
treated inmetss or participated in any executione; that they never
saw him armed with a »ifles or & machine pietel; that they never heard
thet tho mcoused beat & Polieh inmate to death with & stick in front of

the kitehon or that he ehot eny inmate; snd thet iff any such incident
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oeourred, the witnessca would have heard about it (R 470, 471, 478,

485, 486), Witnees Gaertnor corroboratod this testimony substantially
end teptified further that, during the time he was in Flcessenbury, no
pxeeutions took place except by public henginge (R 501, 502), EHo also
testified that the accused was & very agro=abls contrast to the other
85 men at Flossonburg and had always acted correctly toward the inmates
(R 497)., This testimony was further corroborated by Glessslman who
testiried that he wae scquainted with the Bccused from 1942 until the
evacuntion (R 607), Witness Gautech, who was recellad as o Adefense
witness, furthor corroborated the above teetimony (R 589). Witneses
Faulue, & former 55 esesistent ermorer in Flossenburg, teatifisd that the
accuse’ never came to the armory to draw & machine pletol or rifle and
that every nachine gun a8t Fleesenturg hed a silencer sttmched (R 606).
Accuspd SORMATZ testified that the mccused wasg in Department II an? that
all exceution details were formed from members of Departuunt III (. 850).

Yiitnees Martin testified thet he eew the accused almost Aaily from
1942 untdl 1946 (R 522), He testified in behalf of the =ccused ms to
inei‘ente rolsted above and, in additdon thereto, temtifisd that the
focused was &n outetending man comperad to the other 55 men of Flossen~
hurg; thet ho wee net & boster and not & "troudle shooter"; and that
the gonoral opinion among the inmate foremen was that he wes & fina
man (R B33, 524).

Witness Heuner, an inmate, testifiad that the zecused handled
inmatos vory corrsctly &nd that ha pevar heard that the eccumsd sorved
on eny exeoution details (R B4f)., Witnese Kittel testified that the
goneral roputetion of the accused emong the inmates wae good sad that
ne 85 moan in Plossenburg enjoyed ae good & reputetion (R B62, 563),
Stelsnur, an inmate of Flossenburg mnd an interpreter during intsrrogsa-
tione of Russisn inpdtes, testified that the acoused wea never prosent
at any interrogations of Ruseimne and thet ho never sew or heard thet he
had beston any Russlens durding interrog=tiona (R 813, 614),

Witnesas Demmel testified thet he never heard that the accuased shot
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an irmate near block 11 4n March 1945 or that he beat an imate to death
with a stick and that he never saw the ancuged beat or mistreat any irmate
at the formation of labor tramsports (R 543, SLL). He also testified
that he mevor heard that the secused participated in exmeutiens (R Sli3).
Witness Helnsman, an 95 man at Flogsenburg, testified that he served with
the acoused in Department ITIT from 19L2 until 19LL: that, durine this
time the ageused never served on any execution details (R 559); that he
npver hoard that the accoused shot or beat to death a Polish or Rusgian
{mate in larch 19h5 (R 961). He testified furtheor that he never saw
the acovsnd with bloody boots or gloves (R 563). Mitnoss Mchols, an
58 serpeant at Flossorburg, testified that he obsorved the accused
daily and that he never saw or heard that he beat, kicked or mistreated
any irmates (R 6687-660) or that the acoused changed the physical
categories of immatos in order to have them 4ramsferred to a labor ship-
ment (R 657)e He further testificd that he never heard that the aceused
shot an irmate rear blsok 11 in March 1945 or that he beat any irmata to
death in the same month (R £59). He testified thet he never heard that
the acovsed beat 1h o 16 Russian imates dvring his interromtions
(R £50) and that We never saw the aceused with & machime platol or a
rifla (B 658). Ho further tostificd that the immates at Flosserburg had
a good opinion of the accused and that he was considered 2 quiet man with
whom one could get along. This testimony was corroborated in wart by
witnossos Schubert (R Ai9-65L) and Oberbeck (R 637-642).

Sufficicney of “widenges The findings of guilty are warrantcd hy

the svidences Tho sentence is not oxcesaivo.

Petitlonss Mo Fotition for Fowlen nor Petition for Olemency was
filods

Rocommendationt That the Pindines and the sentense be approved.
Vo UFSTIONS OF IAW:

1., Jurdisdictiont It is clear that the Court had jurisdiction of

~the peraons of the aceuscd and of the subiect mattsr,

2. Application of Parent Oasc: The Oourt was required to take.
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ecognizanen of the decleion rendered in the Parent Case, inoluding the find-
inga of tho Court therein, that the mase atrosity operation was oriminal in
nature and that the participants thersin, #ecting in pursuance of a common
nsign, eubjected persons to killinme, beatinge, tortures, etc., end wae
varrentad in inferring that those showm to heve partieivated kney of the
erizinel nature thereof (Letter, Heedguartere, United States Forces, Buropean
Thoater, £ile AG 000.6 JAG-aGO, subject: "Trial of War Crimes Casss', 14
Qetobar 1946, and the Parent Cass), All of the convieted sceoused wero
ghoyn to hewve participated in the mass atroeity and tho Court wis worrantad
by the evidence adfuced, either in the Parent Case or in this subsegquent
procesdings, in concluding as to them that they not only varticipated toa
sucatantial degrus but thet the nature and extent of thoir particlpation
vers such #2a to warrant the sontencee imposed.

3. Double Jeopardy: Tha socusod HECKER and SCHMITZ pleaded in
bar to thodr trial that thoy wore being placed in double jeovardy inzsmuch
as they had boen arralgned previously in the Parent Case whiech commencod
in Dachou, Germany, on 12 June 1946, On 17 Decamber 1946 & nolle prosogul
wes ontered by the prosecution Aa to thesc two accussd (R 6-18),

While it 1 doubted thet sccoused wer erimingle can elaim tho benafits
of the Constitution of the United Btatus, it is not necessery to sonsidoy
that question haorsin,

Thoro is oonsiderable suthority in Military law and in American ¥
muninipal_'arimiml law in support of the view that an accused is not put
in jeopurdy until the ezae hes procceded ¢o final judgment, elther a oon-
viction or an soquittal.

In tho Digest of Opinions of The Judse Advoeate Gencral, 1912, peRgo
167, 1t 48 etatedt

"The Gonstitution (Art, VT of the Amendmenta)
declares that 'no person shall be sudbjeoted,
for the same offense, to be twice put in
Joopardy of 1ife or 1imb.! Tho United States
courts, in treating the teem ‘put in jeopardy!
ad poanings practically tried, held thet the
YJeopardy' indicated 'ean be interpreted to
moan tothing short of the mcguittal or con-—

vietion of the prisoner and the judgment of
the ecurt thereon.! (United States v, Beskell,
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i Wash. C. €., L02, 1095 And see Unitad States
ve Ohoepaker, 2 deLean, 11L; United States v,

Cilbert, 2 Stmner, 19; United States v. Peres,

9 theaten, 579; 1 Op. Atbye Gene, 29l.)"

In Tinthrep's ¥ilftary Tew agpl Trecgedents, second edivion, 1920

reprint, op. 262, 263, 1t 1s stated:

"MIBCONTINUANCE BRFORF PIFDING YOT FAUIVALTNT T0
ACGUITTAL R AMOUNTIMG TO JROPARTY, It remairs
45 rotdide the principle, aupllcable, equally to
elvil and military cases s that 'where, instead of
8 complete trial on the merits, the proceedinss
are discontinued by some interlscutory action,
ths accused, though not in fault, 4s not to be
regarded as having been acquitted or vut in
Jeopardys Thus where an lodictment has heen fhaly
ahared by the entry of a nolle prosenqul, or on a2
motion to quash, demurrer, or other proceedinea;
or where the trial has heen hroken off by reason
of the death or disahility of & jumr or the
judge, or of the deferdant himself; or where by
reaaon of aun lrr=uoncllable difference of oninion
‘ among the Jurors the jury hos been discharged —-
the defendant has not besn legallv 'tried! and
cannot plead autrefois acquit upon a separate
trial for the same offemse, So, at military law,
neither a mere arraipment, nor an arrest follawad
br a diacharge without trial, nor a2 service of
charges withdrawn or dropped without proseoution,
nor 8 withdrawal of the charges after arraipmment
or pending the trial, nor & discontimmance of the
proceedings, by the order of the convening authority,
for any cause hefore a finding, nor a parmanent inter—
ruwblion ulf the same by reason of war or other exioancy,
nor & fallure of the court to agree upon a Pinding,
Tellowed by a dissolution —— will amount to an acquittal
or a8 Mrial! of the acousad.!

I
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In the Yanual for Courts=lartinl, U. 8, Army, par. 72, mage 5T, 1%
1s stated:

"a nolle trosequi is not din iteelf aquivalent to
an acquittal or to a erant of pardon and is not

a prourd of objection or of defense 4in a subsequent
trials It ey Le vnlersd sither hefore or after
arraigment and plea,n

However, a holding to the contirary is indieated in "Constitutionsl

Iaw of the United States", Willoughby, Second Student Tdition, p. 472,
whareln 14 15 atateds

"t 12 rot neeossary, 1n order that rrior
Jeovardy may he pleaded in bar, that thers
should have heen o formor trial and verdict
brea jury. This 18 not the rile uniformly
stated, “ut, as declared by the Supreme Court
in Kepner w. United Otates, 'the weioht of
authority, as well ag decisions of this pourt,
have sanctioned the mile thet o person hag
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been in Jeopdardy when He is regularly enargad
with a crime before & tribunel properly or-én-
iged and compatent to try him; certainly o
af tor acquittal . '"

Thus it appears that the plea of the accused was propsrly ovarrulaed
(R 16), If the Ocurt had sustained the plea, Lt would have spplied
technienl anl localietio methode in ruling on & question which is apparently
not well setiled in American municipal eriminal law, Military Government
Courts are reguired to avold technical and legnlistic wviewpoints during
their vroovedings (Beetion 5-351, Title 5, "Legal snd Penal Administration"
of "Military Government Regulatione", published by 0fflce of Military
Government for Germany (US), 27 March 1947.,) There is n- allegation nor
dogs it appear from the rocord that the defense of this cese wes rendored
nora difficult by the nslle prosequi of the charges againet the mccused
in the Perent Case and recharging them in a separate cfee, The delense
pouneal in his ergument on the gquastion in Court did oot urpe that any
injustieo rosultad to the acousod,

In Bay ovent the international law of war and not Ameriecan munieipal
oriminal law is sppliesble in trial of war orimes czscs (In ro Yamashita, .
66 Supremo Oourt Heporter 340), The defonse hes not cited any provielons
of internationel law or any provision in the regulations soverning Military
Bovernment Oourte in the trisl of wer orimes cases in support of its
vosition, The deniml of the plea of double jeopardy workad no hardahip

on the accusaed, nor wae it inconsietent with & somplete end feir hearing

under tho rules of Military Government Oourts,

4, Adninjstrative Determination of Guilt, Shootings, Hapzinge agd
Injoctions:

The evidencs discloses that a number of exeoutione tank place At
Tloesenburg Ooncentration Camp and its subeamps mnd that accusoed SCEMITE,
BOHMATZ snd HICKYE participmted in some of them, The executlone wera
carried out by shooting, hanging and injsotion. In the osse of
agcused SOHMITZ, a aolor of logelity woe attempted to be shown by evidence
that exocutione by injection werc mads upon orders from Barlin to carry

oat the prineciple of suthanasia.

Whiile under international law & person who has bean found gniﬂ =
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the exvcution must be preceded by & proper trial and sontense by & legally
esnatituted pourt., Morsover, the Geneva Oonvention epecifically pro-

hibits meapures of reprisal againet prisoners of war (Volume II, Oppenhedm,
"Internaticnal Law", Sixth Bdition, pages 331, 466, 4b7; Artlicle 30,

Annex to Hazue Oonvention Wo. IV of 18 October 1907 and Article 2 of the
Genovae (Prisonors of Wer) Convention of 27 July 1929, both set forth in

M 27-261, War Department, U, B, drmy, "Treaties Governing Lend Warfare",
7 January 1944; Volure 2, Wheaton's YInternational Law", Seventh Bdition,

pagzee 220, 240; end Volume I, page 31, "Law Reports of Triale of War
Oriminele" by United Nations Wer Orimes Oommission, 1947, hereinafter
referred to as "Law Reporta".) The United Hations War Crimes Commissicn
in oommonting upon the British Almelo Casc atated sa follows;

ffhe rule of law on which the deeisinn of the Militarny
Court is besed is, therefore, the rule that it is & war
erime 0 kill & captured member of the opposing mrmed foroces
ar a eivilisn inhabitant of occoupled territory, suspect of
pepienege or war treason, unless their guilt has heen es-
tablished by & oourt of law" (Lew Reporte, Volume I, pago 44),

It is irrelevent that the executions mey have been legitimate in
the oyes of Germen jurists and that no violation of domeetie law resulted

(Law Heports. Volume I. pewe 54). Similarly, it is stzted in "Internation-
al Military Tribunal , Yuremberg", Volume I, page 333:

"on the other hand the vory cesence of the Charter ie that
individuale have internatisnal dutics which transcond the

national obli:ationa of obedlence impoesd By the individasl
ptate, Ho who violntea the lawe of war camot obbtain immunity
while mecting in pursuance of the authority of the state if

the state in authorising =ction moves cuteida ite eompdtonce
under international law."

Resardless of the precedine consider=tions, the dsfense failed
to mest ite burden of going forward with the evidence to establish that
the killings wore Juatifiable. While not applieablo as such to war

erineg trinls, the rule as to affirpative Adefenees in homiecide csses in

Ansricen munieipsl criminal law has beon atated as followss

"G.nerally, in eriminal cs=ses as in civil casem the
burdon of proving affirmative defenses roste upon the
defendant &t 211 times. Aocordingly. after the sinte
hae made out ite cmee by wvidencs, in & prosseoution for
homicide, the mcoused must sseume the turden of eatab-
lishing eircunstances »f justification, excuse, or niti-
gatisn, The prosecution beling entitled to the bemefit of
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the presumption of an intent to take life, where a person
has been killed by the inflictisn of & weund or by some
0ther meana ealoulated to produce death, the accused mas
agoume the burden of proving thet there was no intent to
teke 1ife or that the killing was justifiable or excusable,
or, &t lesat, of veiping n rosssneble doubt in His favor,
In order for the accused to oversome the inferenes or pPro-
aumption of malice arising from proof of the intentional
use of & deadly weapon in committing a homieids, he must
prove clreumetances of extenuation or eéxecuse, unless such
facts appear in the evidence produced by the prosesutiaon,

It ia genorally aprand that tho poeused is art wnder any
obligetion to introduce evidence to show mitization, justi-
fieation, or excuse if the proof on the part of the prossou-
tion shows it" (26 American Jurieprudence 352).

This mass atrooity involved thousande of concemtratisn eanp inmates,
Hundreds of the inmates daily were subjocted Yo beatinge, tortures, 8 tArvi-
tion and other abusce and indignities, Eillingze by various nethods were
jumerous Rnd were eommon oocourrences, It ism quite improbable that any
of those who werc in the canp 4 foy days could have believed that any of the
beatings or killings wers legitimate, It must have been apparent to them
that the wnsire cperation wos eonfrary to universally agcepted stendards
of human oonduet, Under such oiroums t2nocea it is all the more appropriate
thet the burden he on the defense to go forwsrd with the evidenes %o cetab-
lish that the bestings and the killinge in penaral or in particulnr wero
Justifiablo,

Thus 1t appears (1) that the n.;mnt ings, hangings and injections
following adninistrative determination of suilt wore i1legal; (2) that the
dofense failed to mset ite burden of going forward with the avidencu to
establiish thet such executione were legal; and () that nene of the 200~
used believed they wore legsl,

5., Insanity: Accused SCHMITZ, with the pormiseion of the Oourt,
chinged his plea of not Tuilty to & plea of not guilty by resson of insanity
(R 746), The acoused bassd his vlea on svidenss that he had boen
suffering from maniacel depressive insanity and had boen sterilized by
order of the Zusenics Gourt nf Appeals, 11 February 1942 (R 570; D-Ex 44),
The expert witnespes produced by the acecused failsd to state unqualifiedly

that the accused was insane at the ting of the comnmission of the mote

charged, One of the experts, Dr ¥pab, stited that 1t woe hie opinion
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that ths accunsd is presently insane and ie not mentally responsible for
his eetions (1 585). Howsvor,two other experts who testified on bohalf
of the accused stated that he is not insane at the present time (R 674,
676, 695, 698), An Ameriean Army peychistriet testified thAt the
aceuscd is presoutly eane and wes eane at the time of the sote allezed
(R 781, 789, 742; P-Ex 238), The guestion of fact as to the accused's
mental eondition weks & questlon to be detercined by the Court, In view
of the ovidenee produced, the Court was justifisd in neking ite special
finding to the effect that the scoused wies n~t inmane at tha tize of the
oamlesion of the allesed offonsse and wae not insane 8t the time -f tho
trial (R 928),

Examination of the entire record failes to diseloee any error or
omiesion in tho conduet of the trifl whieh reagulted in injustice to the
accused,

VI, QONOLUSIOS:
1. It is rocommended that the findinge and the eantances bo approved.
2. Legal Forms Yoo, 13 and 16 $o sccomplish this result arc attnched

hereto, ehould it meet with approval,

LOULS T, HENSOW
Maor FA
Poat Trisl Brensh

Heving extmined the roocord of trisl, I concur, this day

of 1948,

8, B« STHRAIGHT
Livubunsnt CGolunel , JAGD
Deputy Judre Advocate
for War Orimos
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